

# **BROOKVALE GROBY LEARNING CAMPUS**

Valuing Everyone, Achieving Excellence

Mandy Bearne, Acting Headteacher
Telephone: 0116 287 9921 Website: www.brookvalegroby.com

# Brookvale Groby Learning Trust

# Governance Structure September 2019

# Contents

Brookvale Groby Learning Trust (BGLT) Governance Model	3
Aims and Purpose of the Brookvale Groby Learning Trust	4
Overview of the key elements of the governance structure	5
Overview: Composition of the Governance Structure	6
Governance Structure 2019-20	7
Accountability Framework	9
Committees of the Trust	11
Local Academy Board (LAB) Terms of Reference	12
Finance & Operations Committee (F&O) Terms of Reference	16
Remuneration Committee Terms of Reference	20
Terms of Reference for individual link roles	22

# Brookvale Groby Learning Trust (BGLT) Governance Model

Effective governance in our trust is supported by the following:

- Trust Members guardians of the constitution
- Trust Board -the directors/trustees
- Trust Committees include:
  - O Finance and Operations for the trust
  - 0 Local Academy Board for Brookvale Groby Learning Campus

The governance arrangements are reviewed and updated regularly, taking into account the best practice in the sector.

The governance structure is underpinned by the Articles of Association and details set out in the Scheme of Delegation and committee Terms of Reference.

Financial governance must, as a foundation, be compliant with the principles and regulations set out in the Academies Financial Handbook and Funding Agreement.

The Trust Board has overall responsibility and ultimate decision-making authority for all the work of the Academy Trust.

## Aims and Purpose of the Brookvale Groby Learning Trust

Brookvale Groby Learning Trust is committed to the following vision and values in order to drive school improvement and help lead the wider education system.

#### **Trust Vision Statement:**

• To enable the widest opportunities for all in order to raise outcomes for children and young people.

#### Trust Values:

- Professional leadership and learning
- Student achievement
- Wellbeing
- Future
- Community

#### Trust Strategic Objectives:

- Professional leadership and learning: The social capital of the trust is highly developed through a relentless focus on professional learning. All members of staff feel highly valued and invested in so that they can have the highest impact on the life chances of all students. The freedom to debate teaching and learning and to invest in research based enquiry is the cornerstone of the trust.
- Student achievement: All students within the trust, as a result of effective teaching and learning, are supported and challenged to make the highest levels of progress in relation to their own starting points. All students vulnerable to underachievement are championed and supported to achieve their very best.
- Wellbeing: The ethos of the trust secures, for all, the highest possible levels of health and happiness as well as physical, social, emotional, cultural, moral and spiritual welfare and development. The culture of supporting the wellbeing of the individual contributes to securing the highest levels of achievement and progress.
- Future: All students achieve increased responsibility and leadership for the conduct of their lives and their learning. The trust supports all students' broader development as resilient, creative individuals, active, compassionate citizens and enterprising workers in the society within which they live.
- Community: The trust has a clear responsibility to contribute to the development of the local and wider educational community in order to increase social capital and drive school improvement for the benefit of all students. The school and its communities become mutual providers of resources, expertise, employment and learning experiences in order to achieve the long term sustainability of the system.

# **Overview of the key elements of the governance structure**

#### Members

The members are akin to the shareholders of a company. Members have limited but important powers under the Articles of Association. Most notably, they help to ensure that an academy trust has a strong governance framework. Members have the right to amend the trust's articles of association and have powers to appoint and remove trustees in certain circumstances.

As responsibility to conduct the trust's business sits with the trustees, members role is 'eyes on and hands off'.

The Academy Trust will ordinarily have five Members, one of which will also be a Trustee.

The Members will meet at least once a year at the Annual General Meeting (AGM).

#### **Trust Board**

The trustees, who are also directors of the charitable company, are responsible for the three core strategic governance functions:

- Ensuring clarity of vision, ethos and strategic direction
- Holding the head Teacher to account for the educational performance of the school and its pupils and the performance management of staff
- Overseeing the financial performance of the school and making sure its money is well spent

The trustees/directors are responsible for ensuring the charitable company achieves its objectives, as well as compliance with charity and company law and the academy trust's funding agreement.

#### Trust Board Committee(s)

The Board ensures good governance by delegating some of their responsibilities to Committees individual Trustees. The Trust Board Committees are:

- Finance and Operations
- Local Academy Board (LAB) The LAB supports the work of the Trust. The LAB has an individual school remit, which enables it to focus on the performance and scrutiny of teaching and learning; student behaviour, attendance and stakeholder engagement. The LAB is comprised of trustees and other representatives drawn from the school community, both as elected and appointed members.

The broad duties of the committees is set out in the Terms of Reference.

#### **Executive Team**

The "Executive Team" is the executive management of the Trust, focusing on operations and the educational performance of the school. They operate under the leadership and direction of the Headteacher of the Trust.

# **Overview: Composition of the Governance Structure**

#### **Trust Members (5)**

- The signatories to the Memorandum;
- The Chair of Trust Board

#### Trust Board (11)

- Up to 7 Trustees appointed by the Members;
- 2 elected parent Trustees
- Up to 2 Co-opted Trustees appointed by the Trustees.

#### Local Academy Board (Committee) (9)

- The Headteacher;
- Up to two Staff Governors, ensuring that the total numbers of Local Governors who are employees of the Trust shall not exceed one third of the total number of Local Governors;
- Up to 6 Trustees.

#### Finance & Operations Committee (5)

• Up to 5 Trustees.

# Governance Structure 2019-20

Members	5 Members	<ol> <li>John Taylor - 1.4.17 - 31.3.21</li> <li>Bryony Leonard - 1.4.17 - 31.3.21</li> <li>Chair of Trustees</li> <li>Vacancy</li> <li>Vacancy</li> </ol>
Trustees	11 Trustees (Governors): Up to 7 Members appointed 2 parent elected trustees/governors 2 co-opted	<ul> <li>Member appointments <ol> <li>Connor Acton - (Chair) - 1.4.17 - 31.3.21</li> <li>Helen Stockill - (Vice Chair/Maths) - 1.4.17 - 31.3.21</li> <li>Helen Brown - (Chair of LAB / English / Post 16) - 1.4.17 - 31.3.21</li> <li>Brian Jones - (PP/SEND/Vulnerable Groups) - 12.9.17 - 11.9.21</li> <li>Steve Goddard - (Chair of F&amp;O/Health and Safety/Science) - 1.4.17 - 31.3.21</li> <li>Vacancy</li> <li>Vacancy</li> <li>Vacancy</li> </ol> </li> <li>Parent elected <ol> <li>Karl Stewart - (Teaching &amp; Learning/Outcomes) - 11.12.18 - 10.12.22</li> <li>Michael Richardson - (Safeguarding) - 11.12.18 - 10.12.22</li> </ol> </li> <li>Co-opted <ol> <li>Geeta Parekh - (Behaviour &amp; Standards) 7.5.19 - 6.5.23</li> <li>Peter Leatherland 10.12.19 - 9.12.23</li> </ol> </li> </ul>
Local Academy Board (LAB)	10 LAB Members including the Headteacher and 2 staff governors	<ol> <li>Helen Brown - (Chair / English/Post 16)</li> <li>Connor Acton - (PP/SEND)</li> <li>Michael Richardson - (Safeguarding)</li> <li>Brian Jones - (Vulnerable Groups)</li> <li>Karl Stewart - (Teaching &amp; Learning/Outcomes)</li> <li>Geeta Parekh - (Behaviour &amp; Standards)</li> <li>Peter Leatherland</li> <li>Mandy Bearne - (Acting Headteacher)</li> <li>Vacancy - (Staff appointed)</li> <li>Tracy Moore - (Staff appointed) - 26.2.19 - 25.2.23</li> </ol>
Finance and Operations Committee	5 Members - Advised by Helen Smart (Business Director)	<ol> <li>Steve Goddard (Chair/Health and Safety/Science)</li> <li>Helen Brown</li> <li>Helen Stockill</li> </ol>

		4. Vacancy 5. Vacancy
Remunerat ion	3 Trustees	<ol> <li>Chair/Vice Chair of Trustees</li> <li>Chair of LAB</li> <li>Chair of Finance</li> </ol>
Clerking	Trust Clerk	Elaine Freeman

Link areas:

- English focus on boys progress / literacy / reading Helen Brown
- Maths progress / Post 16 maths Helen Stockill
- Post 16 variation in subjects Helen Stockill
- Vulnerable Groups (Pupil Premium /SEND/HPA/LAC) Brian Jones
- Behaviour and standards attendance procedures
- Safeguarding Michael Richardson
- Teaching, Learning and Outcomes (Includes Quality of teaching / Curriculum / Careers)
- Operations(Finance, Health and Safety/Science) Governor Steve Goddard

# Accountability Framework

Activity	Who is leading the activity	When		
Performance Management	Performance Management			
Performance Management of Headteacher	Chair of Trustees Chair of the LAB Chair of Finance and Operations Committee External consultant to attend and service all meetings	September		
Performance Management of Business Director	Headteacher	September		
Performance Management of Deputy Headteachers	Headteacher	October		
Challenge Partnership Review and Subject Review	ew			
Challenge Partnership Review led by external consultant. Report to Trustees and relevant LAB.	External consultant (experienced in Challenge Partnership working across schools within the Thomas Estley Teaching School Alliance) leads a team of heads and senior leaders from other schools	As agreed		
Subject reviews conducted by relevant Senior Leadership Team / Faculty Leader supported by external consultant where required. Reports presented to headteacher, Headteacher Review Group and relevant LAB.	Senior Leaders and Faculty Leaders	According to need as identified by exam outcomes / QA		
Key Performance Indicators (KPIs)	l	ł		
KPIs (including exam, key stage results, current progress, quality of T&L summaries, exclusions, behaviour and attendance summaries etc) relevant to the strategic objectives presented each term to the Trustees and relevant LAB by the headteacher.	Headteacher	Sep/Oct February May/June		
Senior Leaders for progress and vulnerable groups review current performance, progress and attainment, to present reports to Headteacher and Trustees	Senior Leadership Line Managers Curriculum Leaders	Following each assessment point. QA Calendar		

Quality of Teaching and Learning			
Senior Leaders of T&L and professional learning to present reports at the end of each QA cycle to the Headteacher and Trustees	Senior Leaders	End of each QA Cycle	
		QA Calendar	
Personal Development, Behaviour and Welfare			
Senior Leaders of PD, B and W to present reports at the end of each QA cycle to to the Headteacher and Trustees to review behaviour data, exclusions and attendance KPIs.	Senior Leaders	Every half term QA Calendar	
,			
Safeguarding			
Brookvale Groby Learning Campus Review current safeguarding practice termly using Governor Audit review tool. Report to	Safeguarding Senior Leader Safeguarding Trustee Business Director (Manager of	Termly QA Calendar	
Headetacher, Trustees and LAB.	the Single Central Record)		
External safeguarding audit	Deputy Head - Pastoral	2 yearly	
Business and Finance			
Business Director collates Trust budget forecast information and presents to Headteacher, Finance and Operations Committee, and to Trustees for final approval.	Business Director	Annual	
Business Director presents termly budget monitoring information for the Trust to the Finance and Operations Committee.	Business Director	Termly	
Business Director presents monthly budget monitoring information for the Trust to Chair of Trustees	Business Director	Monthly	
Business Director presents monthly budget monitoring information to Trustees	Business Director	6 times per year	

# **Committees of the Trust**

#### The following committees are established by the trustees and reviewed annually.

#### **Finance and Operations Terms of Reference**

The Chair of Finance and Operations will be chosen by the Trustees and will have a finance specialism.

Local Academy Board

**Remuneration Committee Terms of Reference - see Pay Policy for Teachers** 

**Student Disciplinary Terms of Reference** 

# Local Academy Board (LAB) Terms of Reference

The terms of reference of the LAB must be approved by the Board of Trustees annually.

The composition of the LAB will be agreed by the Trustees and may be amended from time to time. The LAB shall not exceed 9 members and will be composed of:

- The Headteacher;
- Up to two Staff Governors, ensuring that the total numbers of Local Governors who are employees of the Trust shall not exceed one third of the total number of Local Governors;
- 6 Trustees

The LAB will operate as a committee of the Trust Board.

#### **Operational Responsibilities of the LAB**

- 1. To accept annually the BGLC Terms of Reference and Standing Orders.
- 2. To appoint (or remove) a Chair and Vice Chair annually.
- 3. To hold at least four LAB meetings per year.
- 4. To recruit new stakeholder governors as vacancies arise (staff).
- 5. To arrange induction and mentoring for newly appointed or elected governors.
- 6. To organise and participate in appropriate training.
- 7. To receive reports from the Headteachers as agreed (generally at each meeting).
- 8. To receive KPI data reports.
- 9. To reviews policies in line with Policy Review Schedule and maintain a knowledge of Trust policies.

#### General Responsibilities of the LAB

- 1. To regularly review the school's vision and values and recommend changes to the Board.
- 2. To ensure that the vision and values are shared with all stakeholders.
- To take an active role in School Self Evaluation, Peer Review and Subject Reviews (quality assurance), recognising success while identifying and monitoring areas requiring improvement.
- 4. To review the Campus Improvement Plan (CIP) and ensure that it is updated regularly and focussed on key priorities. Reviewing progress of the CIP through the year, and reviewing the impact document at the end of the year.
- 5. To review and challenge KPI data termly ensuring any priority areas are fed into the CIP.
- 6. To be aware of how the school is regarded by students and parents.
- 7. To be aware of school policies and regularly review policies delegated to the LAB, consulting with representative stakeholders as appropriate.
- 8. Operation and review of the of the Complaints Procedure.
- 9. To ensure that the LAB complies with all duties delegated to it by the Trust Board.

#### Specific Responsibilities of the LAB (this list is not exhaustive)

#### Behaviour for Learning and Exclusions

(Monitoring delegated to SEND and Teaching, Learning and Outcomes Governors)

- 1. To review regularly the Behaviour Policy.
- 2. To monitor the application of the Behaviour Policy.
- 3. To review the use of detentions and exclusions.
- 4. To review and decide whether or not to uphold permanent exclusions.
- 5. To review and decide whether or not to uphold fixed term exclusions where a student is either excluded for +15 days in a term or would lose the opportunity to sit a public exam.

6. Monitor attendance, punctuality and disciplinary matters for students including all exclusion related matters.

#### Curriculum

(Monitoring delegated to Teaching, Learning and Outcomes Governor)

- 1. To review and agree the curriculum model.
- 2. To monitor delivery of agreed curriculum.

#### Safeguarding and Child Protection

(Monitoring delegated to Safeguarding Governor)

- 1. To ensure that the safety and protection of all students is prioritised.
- 2. To ensure the safeguarding policies, procedures and training are effective and comply with the law (Keeping Children Safe in Education 2019).
- 3. To undertake regular visits to meet with the Designated Safeguarding Lead and other key staff.

#### School Organisation

- 1. To recommend to the Board the time of the school sessions and the dates of school terms and holidays.
- 2. To review home/school agreements.
- 3. To be familiar with the content of the school and sixth form prospectus.
- 4. To ensure that the requisite information is published on the school website.

#### SEND, Pupil Premium and LAC Students

(Monitoring is delegated to Vulnerable Groups Governor)

- 1. To discharge responsibilities for all SEND students per latest directives & recommendations.
- 2. To monitor the relative achievement of disadvantaged students towards closing all gaps including reviewing the pupil premium strategy and impact of Pupil Premium funding.
- 3. To ensure that each student is encouraged to achieve to his/her maximum potential.
- 4. To check that all required information is published on the school website.

#### **Performance Management**

1. Chair of LAB and Finance & Operations to contribute to performance management of Headteacher.

#### Staffing

- 1. To be familiar with the staffing structure and its rationale.
- 2. To maintain a knowledge of the roles and responsibilities of current members of senior leadership.

#### **Target Setting and Achievement**

(Monitoring delegated to Teaching, Learning and Outcomes Governor)

- 1. To understand the annual targets for student achievement.
- 2. To monitor student achievement against published targets.
- 3. To hold the Headteacher to account for achievement of targets.

#### Teaching & Learning

(Monitoring delegated to Teaching, Learning and Outcomes Governor)

1. Monitor the quality of teaching and the impact of action taken by leaders.

### **Standing Orders**

#### **Operation of the LAB**

1. The usual term of office for all members of the LAB will be 4 years except for the

headteacher who is ex-officio.

2. The vice chair of the LAB will be elected annually by the members of LAB at its first meeting in each school year.

#### Arrangements for meetings of the LAB:

- 1. All governors meetings will be convened by the Clerk.
- 2. An agenda for each meeting will be drawn up by the Clerk, in liaison with the Chair of Governors and the Headteacher.
- 3. The clerk to the LAB will circulate the agenda and any papers seven clear days' notice in advance of the meeting.
- 4. Any 3 members of the LAB may request an extraordinary meeting by giving written notice to the Clerk, to include a summary of the business proposed for discussion. The Clerk will then prepare an agenda and call a meeting.
- 5. The LAB will meet as often as is necessary to fulfil its responsibilities but as a minimum, the LAB will meet at least once each term. The LAB shall meet at least two weeks prior to a meeting of the Board.
- 6. The quorum for any meeting of the LAB meeting is at least 3 of those members of the LAB currently appointed, rounded up to the nearest whole number.
- 7. In the absence of either the chair and vice chair or the clerk at a meeting of the LAB, the LAB will agree a replacement for the meeting.
- 8. LAB meetings will generally commence at 5.30pm unless otherwise agreed.
- Meetings will be limited to two hours in duration. Where business has not been completed within the agreed time, those present may resolve to continue the meeting in order to complete the agenda. Any business not completed will form part of the agenda for the next meeting.
- 10. Each member of the LAB shall have one equal vote. Where there is an equal division of votes, the chair of the LAB will have the casting vote.
- 11. Votes will normally be taken by a show of hands; however, the Chair of the meeting may call for a secret ballot where this has been requested by two or more governors.
- 12. All recommendations and decisions made at a meeting of the LAB will be recorded accurately in writing. These minutes will be forwarded by the Clerk of the Trust and LAB within two weeks of the meeting date.
- 13. The Board may request the chair of the LAB to attend any Board meeting and present a summary of the issues discussed and recommendations made at any previous LAB meeting.
- 14. An annual timetable of meeting and training dates will be prepared and circulated to governors in the summer term of the previous year.
- 15. Governors wishing to suggest items for consideration at a meeting should inform the Clerk in advance and provide a copy of any supporting papers.
- 16. Items proposed for consideration under Any Other Business should be communicated to the Clerk no later than one week prior to the meeting.
- 17. Governors and attendees will be invited to declare any interests they may have in relation to agenda items at the start of each meeting.
- 18. Governors with an interest in an agenda item will refrain from discussing it and voting.
- 19. Draft minutes of each meeting will be approved by the Chair of Governors for email circulation within two weeks of the meeting where possible.
- 20. Minutes of the previous meeting will be approved by governors at their next meeting.

#### Governors are expected to:

- Diary note published meeting and training dates.
- Arrive in good time for the start of any meeting.
- Read the paperwork distributed in advance and identify questions/challenges to raise.
- Be familiar with the contents of the School Plans (CIP and SEF).
- Refrain from inappropriate personal criticism.
- Participate in discussions, paying due attention to the views and comments of others.
- Be brief and adhere to any time limits allocated to agenda items.
- Follow up on action points between meetings.
- Maintain confidentiality.

#### The following persons have the right to attend any or all meetings of the LAB:

- Any trustee
- Clerk

#### The following persons will attend meetings of the LAB by governors' invitation:

- Members of the Senior Leadership Team (SLT)
- Any prospective appointed governor in the course of recruitment

#### The Role of the Chair of the Local Academy Board (LAB)

The Chair of the LAB agrees:

- 1. To represent the LAB on the Trust Board.
- 2. To ensure that the business of the LAB is conducted properly in accordance with the delegation requirements of the Trust.
- 3. To ensure, as far as is possible, that the LAB is fully populated.
- 4. To ensure that LAB meetings are run effectively, prioritising business, making best use of the time available and ensuring that all governors have an equal opportunity to participate in discussion and decision-making.
- 5. To establish and foster an effective relationship with the Headteachers.
- 6. To establish and foster a professional relationship with the Clerk.

#### Standing order for the election of the Vice Chair of the LAB

The LAB must elect a Chair and a Vice Chair by means of a fair, open and transparent process:

- The Vice Chair will be elected each year at the first meeting of the LAB.
- Nominations will be invited by the Clerk in advance of the meeting.
- Candidates may self-nominate or be nominated by other governors.
- Should a vote be necessary, nominees will withdraw from the meeting.
- A secret ballot may be held when governors decide by a majority vote to adopt this process.

NB Governors who are paid to work at the school, eg the Headteachers and staff governors, are not eligible to be elected Chair or Vice Chair of the LAB.

#### **Election/appointment of LAB Governors**

#### Headteacher

The Headteacher shall be treated as an ex-officio members of the LAB.

#### Staff Governors

One staff governor will be appointed from each academy. In appointing staff to serve on the LAB nominations will be invite from all staff employed under a contract of employment or a contract of services. Where there are is a contested post a secret ballot will be held. All arrangements for the nomination and election process will be determined by the LAB.

# Finance & Operations Committee (F&O) Terms of Reference

The purpose of this committee is to monitor and make recommendations to the Trust Board on matters relating to the Finance, Human Resources, Premises and Health and Safety of the campus.

This committee will have delegated responsibility for audit providing assurance to the board over the suitability of, and compliance with, financial systems and operational controls.

The terms of reference of the Finance & Operations Committee (F&O) must be approved by the Board of Trustees of the Brookvale Groby Learning Trust. All decisions reserved for F&O Committee shall be determined by the Board and will be reviewed at least annually.

#### 1. Composition and membership

The composition of the F&O Committee will be agreed by the Trustees and may be amended from time to time. The Committee shall operate with 5 Trustees.

The committee may invite attendance at meetings from persons who are not Trustees or Committee members to assist or advise on a particular matter or range of issues. Any Trustee may attend a F&O Committee meeting. Local Governors may be invited to attend by the F&O Chair. Only committee members may vote.

Committee membership is agreed at the first trust board meeting of the academic year. Advisors to the committee are the BGLC Business Director and the Headteacher. The committee will be clerked by the Clerk to The Trust Board.

The chair of the Finance and Operations Committee will be a Trustee and will have a Finance specialism / expertise.

#### 2. Delegated Power

The committee has delegated power from the Trust Board to make decisions for the areas of responsibilities outlined in the terms of reference

The committee may wish to form a sub group to discuss a specific issue or topic. The membership should be agreed by the committee and report back to the committee appropriately.

All decisions and recommendations will be reported to the next meeting of the Trust Board.

#### 3. Quorum and Voting

The quorum for a meeting is 3 committee members. No vote on any matter shall be taken unless the majority of members of the committee present are Trustees.

Every matter to be decided at a meeting of the committee must be determined by a majority of the votes of the members present and voting on the matter. Where there is an equal division of votes the Chair shall have a casting vote.

A register of attendance shall be kept for each committee meeting and published annually.

#### 4. Operating Procedures of the Committee

- To accept annually the F&O Terms of Reference.
- To appoint a Chair annually at the first meeting of the academic year. No person may act as Chair unless they are also a member of the Trust Board.
- To appoint (or remove) a Vice Chair annually.
- The Committee will meet as often as is necessary to fulfil its responsibilities but at least three times a year.
- To declare interests at the beginning of each meeting and during a meeting should they arise.
- To ensure that a register of Governors' Business Interests is maintained.
- To organise and participate in appropriate training.
- To receive reports from the Business Director as agreed (generally at each meeting).
- To review academy policies in line with Policy Review Schedule and maintain a knowledge of Trust policies.
- To maintain an understanding and awareness of the Funding Agreement and provisions set out in the Academies Financial Handbook

#### 5. Reporting Procedures

Within 14 days of each meeting the Committee will produce and agree minutes of its meetings.

The Committee shall conduct an annual review of its work and these terms of reference and shall report the outcome and make recommendations to the Trust Board.

#### 6. **Responsibilities of the Committee**

#### Financial Planning & Organisation

- To consider indicative funding, notified annually by the Department for Education (DfE) and to assess its implications for the Trust. This will be in consultation with the Headteacher (Accounting Officer) and Business Director, in advance of the financial year, drawing any matters of significance or concern to the attention of the Trust Board.
- To consider and recommend acceptance or non-acceptance of the Trust budget each financial year.
- To establish and maintain a 3 year financial plan drawing any matters of significance or concern to the attention of the Trust Board.

#### Budgeting

- To contribute to the formulation of the Trust strategic plan, through the consideration of financial priorities and proposals, in consultation with the Headteacher and Business Director and with the stated and agreed aims and objectives of the school.
- To receive and make recommendations on the broad budget headings and areas of expenditure to be adopted each year. This will include the level and use of any

contingency fund or balances, ensuring the compatibility of all such proposals with the development priorities set out in strategic plan.

- To liaise with and receive reports from appropriate committees and make recommendations to those committees about the financial aspects of matters being considered by them.
- To delegate the day to day management of the approved budget to the relevant Headteacher, within agreed authorisation limits.
- To consider requests for supplementary expenditure and make appropriate recommendations to the Trust Board.
- To review financial policy including consideration of long term planning and resourcing in accordance with the school development plan.

#### Expenditure

• To monitor and review expenditure on a regular basis and ensure compliance with the overall financial plan for the Trust, and with the financial regulations of the ESFA, drawing any matters of concern to the attention of the Trust Board.

#### **Financial Procedures**

- To monitor and review procedures for ensuring the effective implementation and operation of financial procedures, on a regular basis, including the implementation of bank account arrangements and where appropriate make recommendations for improvement.
- To prepare the financial statement to form part of the annual report of the Trust Board to stakeholders and for filing in accordance with requirements of the Companies Act, Charity Commission and Funding Agreement (including the Academies Financial Handbook)

#### Audit

- Review and address the risks to internal financial controls, agreeing a programme of work to address and provide assurance on those risks.
- Appointment of an internal audit service and review reports of any recommendations on the effectiveness of the financial procedures and controls
- Ensure that information submitted to the DfE and EFA that affect funding, including pupils number returns and funding claims are accurate and comply with the relevant funding criteria.
- Complete the governance statement that forms part of the audited accounts to provide assurance to the external auditors.

#### Health & Safety

- To receive each term the Business Director's Health and Safety report and advise as necessary.
- Consideration and approval of Health and Safety policy, including procedures for Educational Visits.
- To monitor compliance with the Academies Health & Safety policies and statutory obligations under the Health and Safety at Work Act 1974.

- To receive reports from the relevant Headteacher on the annual inventory check including details of surplus / missing items
- To confirm that an asset recording system is in place, including an inventory and fixed asset register for each Academy.

#### **Property Management**

- To approve the security policy and emergency plan for the campus as recommended by the Trust Business Director
- To determine the use of premises and grounds with regard to the lettings and charging policy.
- To ensure that the premises are inspected on an annual basis and that a planned and costed statement of priorities is prepared and reviewed.
- To ensure the long term development of facilities in order to maintain the campus position as a central point for the community.
- To ensure the responsibilities of the Trust Board under the Environmental Protection Act are met.
- To advise the Trust Board on environmental issues to ensure the campus is acting as a responsible institution in its duty to conserve energy, materials and with regard to the local community.

#### Human resources

- To oversee the HR strategy developed by the Trust Business Director
- To receive reports from the Headteacher about the staffing positions
- To review and approve policies linked to the employment of staff
- To review regular KPI information produced by the Business Director to review current staffing position across the Trust

#### Performance Management and Pay

• Chair of committee to contribute to performance management the Head.

#### General

- Reviewing or investigating any other matters referred to the Committee by the Trust Board.
- Drawing any significant recommendations and matters of concern to the attention of the Trust Board.

Theses terms of reference should be read in conjunction with

The Finance policy

The Financial Scheme of Delegation

The Academies Financial Handbook

The terms of Reference will be monitored by the Board of Trustees.

### **Remuneration Committee Terms of Reference**

The role of the Remuneration Committee is to maintain an oversight of the Trust's approach to remuneration and pay progression.

#### Committee membership

- The membership will consist of 3 Trustees, none of whom are employees of the Trust.
- Members of the committee shall be appointed by the board annually.
- Committee members will attend committee meetings. Those required to advise this committee may be invited to attend meetings. Any conflict of interest matters will be resolved according to the guidance contained in the Academies Financial Handbook.

#### **Quorum and Voting**

- The quorum necessary for the transaction of business shall be 3 members of the Committee.
- Where a vote is taken to decide on a course of action or to endorse a decision a simple majority of those eligible to vote will be required. The Chair will have a casting vote.

#### **Frequency of meetings**

• The Committee will meet as often as is necessary to fulfil its responsibilities but shall meet at least once per year.

#### Chairing

- The Committee shall at the first meeting of each academic year elect a chair from among their number (the Chair). In the absence of the Chair, the remaining members present shall elect one of themselves to chair the meeting.
- The Chair of the board shall not be Chair of the committee.
- Employees of the Trust may not act as Chair, other than in exceptional circumstances agreed by the Board.

#### Clerking

• The Committee will be clerked by the Trust Clerk. The Committee may appoint an alternative clerk if this is not possible.

#### **Reporting responsibilities**

Within 14 days of each meeting the Committee through the clerk will produce and agree draft minutes of its meetings. The Committee minutes will be submitted to the Trust Board members at the subsequent meeting. Matters indicated as confidential will not be circulated to all Board trustees. But will be retained in a "confidential matters minute" as part of the Committee's minutes.

#### **Committee Tasks**

- 1. To review, approve and monitor strategy and policies on performance management, remuneration and conditions of service.
- 2. To ensure the Board has a senior leadership succession plan which minimises the risk to business continuity in the event of resignations or long term absence.
- 3. To consider the outcome of performance management and approve pay recommendations of the Headteacher.
- 4. To review and monitor the effectiveness of performance management and pay awards for schools in the Trust including senior leaders.
- 5. To hear appeals in relation to disciplinary, grievance and pay for members of staff within the trust.
- 6. To review, approve and monitor special staff severance payments above the statutory or contractual entitlement (payments over £50k must be authorised by EFA).
- 7. To approve HR policies as determined by the Trust Board through the Trust Policy Framework.

8. To consider other areas, as determined by the Trust Board from time to time

#### Review

The Committee will self-assess its performance against these Terms of Reference on an annual basis and will also review the Terms of Reference, submitting any proposed changes to the Board for approval.

Along with all other chairs of committee, a review of their performance will be completed annually

# Terms of Reference for individual link roles

Any individual to whom responsibility for governance monitoring has been delegated is expected to work within the following terms of reference:

- 1. To monitor an area of the school's activity as assigned and report to the LAB.
- 2. Complete up to two monitoring visits each year. Where relevant, meeting with the relevant lead professional in school to gain an understanding of the activities the school is conducting to achieve success in the relevant area.
- 3. Plan any visits to the school with the Headteachers' agreement and in accordance with the relevant Trust protocol and scope.
- 4. Although preferable, a visit need not necessarily take place during the time when students are in school. A meeting between governor/s and teacher/s or SLT members at the beginning or end of the school day may substitute for a conventional monitoring visit.
- 5. Other forms of communication between governor/s and school (such as telephone calls, emails, etc) may be substituted for one or more monitoring visit.
- 6. To submit a monitoring report to the Clerk within 2 weeks of the visit on the template supplied, not to exceed more than one side of A4.
- 7. Reports will be submitted to the Headteachers and/or relevant lead professional within the school, and then be lodged with the clerk of governors for discussion at the next LAB meeting.
- 8. To undertake any necessary training (in or out of school) to enable effective monitoring of link responsibility and governance in general.